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          1  COMMITTEE ON IMMIGRATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Good morning. My

          3  name is Councilman Stewart, the Chair of the

          4  Immigration Committee. I know most of my colleagues

          5  are across the street and they should be here

          6  shortly, but nevertheless, we would like to start

          7  this hearing, the Immigration hearing on issues that

          8  deal with the economy from the City that deals with

          9  immigrants.

         10                 Immigrants play a crucial role in the

         11  U.S. economy, comprising almost one in eight

         12  workers, and one in four low-wage workers. They're

         13  already the backbone of many industries, and labor

         14  economists predict that their presence will continue

         15  to grow.

         16                 Without immigrants our aging society

         17  will be dramatically short of workers in offices

         18  factories, farms, short of savings and investment to

         19  support the national economic growth, and short of

         20  tax revenues to finance government services and

         21  Social Security.

         22                 Many immigrant workers confront

         23  enormous challenges in the labor force, language and

         24  cultural barriers, exploitative working conditions,

         25  immigration status, vulnerabilities, and workforce
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          2  development and education system that do not respond

          3  to their needs.

          4                 While many immigrants arrive in the

          5  United States with vocational skills, and employment

          6  experiences, they often have difficulty putting

          7  their skills to work, because of a lack of

          8  familiarity with the American workforce, and the

          9  tenancy of employers to discount foreign work

         10  experience and credentials.

         11                 As we will see today, a growing

         12  number of businesses, government agencies, and

         13  community organizations have recognized broad

         14  benefits of investing in the immigrant workforce.

         15  Using a variety of different strategies, direct

         16  services and education, outreach, organizing and

         17  advocacy, they have managed to not only improve

         18  employment opportunities and outcomes for skilled

         19  immigrants, but also had contributed to a doable

         20  viability of their communities.

         21                 I believe providing training to

         22  skilled immigrants for jobs that are in high demand,

         23  is a particularly effective way of improving

         24  employment prospects for this population.

         25  Recognizing the importance of immigrant workers to
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          2  our local economy, the Immigration Committee would

          3  like to begin to see local governments develop

          4  programs that will coordinate workforce expansion

          5  services to professional newcomers, so that they

          6  have better access to the tools and programs needed

          7  to help them become economically self-sufficient.

          8                 Through a comprehensive plan to have

          9  internationally trained individuals, we can help

         10  improve the lives of so many, while at the same time

         11  help alleviate the shortage in many fields such as

         12  the health industry.

         13                 Much our nation, much of our nation's

         14  new workforce for the foreseeable future will come

         15  from immigration.

         16                 For this reason today, we will look

         17  at the issue of skilled immigrants to focus where

         18  the programs can be designed to improve immigrants'

         19  job skills so that they may work in their field of

         20  expertise. These types of programs in my judgment

         21  are so critical to our nation's short and long-term

         22  economic good that they must be explored.

         23                 At this time, I would like to call

         24  our first witness who is Elana Broitman from UJA

         25  Federation of New York.
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          2                 MS. BROITMAN: Good morning, Chairman

          3  Stewart, Councilman Nelson, thank you for allowing

          4  me to present to you today. I'm going to give a

          5  shortened version of the testimony you have in front

          6  of you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Could you please

          8  identify yourself and then we can go forward.

          9                 MS. BROITMAN: I am Elana Broitman,

         10  and I represent UJA Federation of New York, which

         11  helps to serve a broad spectrum of brokers

         12  throughout the five boroughs by supporting of

         13  network of over 100 social service agencies.

         14                 Last year we raised over 230 million

         15  from tens of thousands of donors, which we use in

         16  large part to support these non-for-profit agencies;

         17  however, our work would not be possible without the

         18  partnership with New York City Council, because

         19  while UJA Federation doesn't take government

         20  funding, our agencies rely on public funding in

         21  addition to philanthropic support to provide their

         22  services.

         23                 As you well know, New York's foreign

         24  born population is increasing and your leadership

         25  and funding IOI last year was a clear recognition of
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          2  this reality and we hope to see more funding for

          3  immigrant services this year.

          4                 And of course, as you also recognize

          5  clearly by holding this hearing, New York's

          6  immigrant population is extremely diverse.

          7                 Because several of our agencies

          8  identified the need among skilled immigrants, we

          9  provided grants in the last couple years to train

         10  immigrants to be able to use their skills in the US,

         11  and to pass any certification requirements

         12  associated with their profession.

         13                 A number of people come to the US

         14  trained as teachers, engineers, doctors, nurses or

         15  other professionals valuable to our economy. Yet,

         16  they face the multiple barriers of not knowing

         17  English, particularly the vocabulary required for

         18  their jobs. They face new accreditation requirements

         19  and often a workplace culture that's different from

         20  the one they knew. They need ESOL, including

         21  vocationally SOL, preparation to retake

         22  certification exams and help with job search, job

         23  placement and workplace training skills.

         24                 This is what our agencies have been

         25  doing with small grants we provided to them. As a
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          2  private philanthropy, however, we see our role as

          3  identifying previously unmet needs and providing

          4  seed funding to support innovative ideas. Once the

          5  need and the response are proven, we don't have the

          6  funds to continue such programs on the kind of scale

          7  that a City like New York needs, and therefore, the

          8  ideal partnership between philanthropy and

          9  government is where government picks up new programs

         10  launched by the non-profit sectors, and expands them

         11  to scale needed by the City.

         12                 Let me just describe for you a couple

         13  of the programs we have funded, and luckily for me

         14  I'm speaking to Brooklyn numbers because they happen

         15  to be mostly in Brooklyn.

         16                 One program provided almost 50 hours

         17  of training to immigrants to prepare them to take a

         18  City civil service exam so that they could then go

         19  on to work for the City.

         20                 Another program provided counseling

         21  from trained job placement and mental health

         22  professionals, and yet another direct job placement

         23  and job development assistance.

         24                 Another Brooklyn Program took almost

         25  150 immigrants with teaching experience and then
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          2  provided them with the training, counseling,

          3  guidance and support, to enable them to successfully

          4  complete teacher and teacher assistance

          5  certification exams.

          6                 Another program again in Brooklyn

          7  focused not on training for a particular skill, but

          8  took a variety of skilled immigrants, and did a sort

          9  of case management with them, and connected them

         10  with preparatory courses, exam locations needed, and

         11  provided interviewing and job seeking skills.

         12                 And then, finally, a Citywide program

         13  that we funded offered a 16-week course that trained

         14  bookkeepers. It was bookkeeping skills, computer

         15  skills, that sort of thing.

         16                 We've learned several important

         17  lessons from funding these programs. One is that

         18  small classes tend to work better.

         19                 Two is that it requires a time

         20  commitment. The courses we funded have ranged

         21  anywhere from 50 hours to 16 weeks. This is not a

         22  cheap endeavor.

         23                 And three, job placement services,

         24  networking and help with interviewing skills are

         25  very important components of a successful training
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          2  program.

          3                 Again, thank you for allowing me to

          4  speak to you today, and I would be pleased to answer

          5  any questions.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Well, first of

          7  all, we have been joined by Council Member Nelson

          8  from Brooklyn. Let me ask you a couple of questions.

          9  If we could find a program to help move immigrants

         10  into the professional and employment arena, what

         11  would you say would be the most important components

         12  of that that we have to do?

         13                 MS. BROITMAN: It partly depends on

         14  the job, if it requires a certification exam, that's

         15  a critical component, to prepare them for the exam.

         16                 But otherwise, of course, ESOL,

         17  particularly vocationally ESOL. And job placement

         18  and job training. Literally helping them to learn

         19  how to look for jobs and how to interview and how to

         20  thrive in an American work culture.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: So what do you

         22  see as the biggest challenge then?

         23                 MS. BROITMAN: If there's a

         24  certification exam, that's certainly the biggest

         25  challenge. That's such a clear obstacle they have to
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          2  overcome.

          3                 And otherwise it's ESOL, more than

          4  anything.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: You spoke about

          6  the different programs that I think your sister

          7  agencies perform. You mentioned a program in

          8  Brooklyn providing 50 hours of training to

          9  immigrants to prepare them to take the City's Civil

         10  Service exam.

         11                 How do you recruit your students?

         12                 MS. BROITMAN: All of these programs

         13  were run by agencies that already have other

         14  immigrant services, and already in communities with

         15  lots of immigrants who may be using a variety of

         16  services, whether it's really immigrant services or

         17  they're coming in for child care or some other

         18  things. And, so, a lot of it is that caseworkers, or

         19  other professionals at the agencies know the

         20  potential clients and hear about their needs.

         21                 I should also mention, actually, that

         22  for every one of these programs, people were

         23  screened. There was a longer waiting list than they

         24  could accommodate, so they took them through a

         25  screening process to even decide who are the best
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          2  candidates were for these courses.

          3                 There was, of course, also

          4  information available at the agencies and around the

          5  community.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right. So,

          7  how many applicants approached your organization

          8  requesting recognition, you know, of their foreign

          9  credentials?

         10                 MS. BROITMAN: Yes, I want to get back

         11  to you in order to be accurate, which I'm happy to

         12  do. Because all of these different agencies, I don't

         13  have their documents in front of me. But I have that

         14  information back in my office, and I'll get back to

         15  you on that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: So, did any of

         17  those, your community-based organization, did they

         18  seek help from like the professional institutions

         19  like the City University or universities around?

         20                 MS. BROITMAN: There were a variety of

         21  partnerships. I'm not aware of any with the City

         22  University or other universities, but there were a

         23  variety of partnerships with other non-profits to

         24  try to combine -- one agency may have had, for

         25  example, job placement assistance already in house,
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          2  but didn't have particular skills training in a

          3  skill that they identified. So they would combine

          4  efforts with other agencies in order to put together

          5  an entire program.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right.

          7  Council members, do you have any questions?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 Hi. Welcome, Ms. Broitman.

         11                 In my opinion, job training and

         12  preparation for tasks and the like are cost

         13  effective for the City. I don't think this is in

         14  place, but any stats available based on immigrants

         15  who have come in to the City that were on public

         16  assistance and were taken off of public assistance?

         17  It could be illustrated, a decline in government

         18  spending based upon success stories. This would help

         19  all of us sell this to the rest?

         20                 MS. BROITMAN: Right. I would have to

         21  say I am not aware of stats that we have in-house,

         22  and I'll look for that. But anecdotally, that's the

         23  way some of these people were identified. People

         24  come in saying, I need to find a job, otherwise I

         25  need to have some help with getting government
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          2  benefits and when it was found that some of these

          3  clients had skills that they were bringing in from

          4  another country or were very interested in, the

          5  Civil Service exam or the bookkeeping, et cetera,

          6  then they were trained and placed in jobs, rather,

          7  than benefits.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes, I would

          9  think if you have some organization that could

         10  assign X amount of people to do this, and then make

         11  a presentation, of course to this Committee, but it

         12  would go way beyond the walls of this room to show,

         13  because there are a lot of people who were not crazy

         14  about spending a lot of money, I don't think

         15  anybody, as part of a fight, as presented. Or use

         16  that as, besides the humanitarianism of it, to

         17  present that in dollars and cents is always also an

         18  effective marketing tool for us.

         19                 MS. BROITMAN: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I know some of

         21  the work that your organization does, and I know

         22  it's beneficial to our City. So, I appreciate your

         23  appearing here today.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MS. BROITMAN: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Thank you. And

          3  now we have Suma Kurien, from LaGuardia Community

          4  College, and Sandra Watson, also from LaGuardia

          5  Community College. Also, Allan Wernick from CUNY,

          6  and Midori Hills from the CUNY Project.

          7                 Will you first identify yourself and

          8  then begin.

          9                 Each one of you are going to be

         10  testifying?

         11                 MR. WERNICK: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Each one of you

         13  are going to testify. So, identify yourself, please.

         14                 MR. WERNICK: My name is Allan

         15  Wernick. I'm a Professor at Baruch College, and

         16  Chair of the CUNY Citizenship and Immigration

         17  Project.

         18                 MS. HILLS: Midori Hills, with the

         19  CUNY Citizenship and Immigration Project.

         20                 MS. KURIEN: Suma Kurian, Director for

         21  the Center for Immigrant Education and Training at

         22  LaGuardia Community College.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Is the light

         24  off?

         25                 MS. HILLS: It's on.
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          2                 MS. KURIEN: Do I need to do this

          3  again?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Yes.

          5                 MS. KURIEN: I'm Suma Kurian, Director

          6  for the Center for Immigrant Education and Training

          7  at LaGuardia Community College.

          8                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: I'm Sandra

          9  Watson, Associate Dean, Division of Adult and

         10  Continuing Education at LaGuardia Community College,

         11  City University of New York.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Mr. Wernick, you

         13  have the first shot.

         14                 MR. WERNICK: Okay, thank you so much.

         15  Thank you, Chairman Stewart and Councilman Nelson.

         16                 As I mentioned, I'm Chair of the CUNY

         17  Citizenship and Immigration Project, here to address

         18  how our project can assist immigrant professionals.

         19                 Every year over 100,000 New Yorkers

         20  become permanent residents, thousands more attend

         21  school here, others come as visitors and want to

         22  stay. Many of these individuals come to the United

         23  States having academic and professional achievements

         24  in their home countries, foreign doctors, nurses,

         25  and other health care professionals, architects,
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          2  engineers, others, often need assistance in meeting

          3  the complicated and difficult requirements for

          4  getting certified to practice their professions.

          5                 Others need specialized language

          6  training. Still others need help navigating the

          7  complicated immigration system.

          8                 CUNY is well situated to address

          9  these concerns. As we have previously testified, we

         10  operate five fully-staffed immigration law centers

         11  in New York City. Three operate under the auspices

         12  of the CUNY citizenship and immigration project, and

         13  those centers are located at City College of New

         14  York. Hostos Community College and Queens Borough

         15  Community College at its Flushing Center. Others

         16  operate at New York City College of Technology and

         17  at Medgar Evers College.

         18                 Now I'd just like to interrupt my

         19  testimony for a second and let Midori Hills, who

         20  supervises, an attorney, supervises our work in

         21  Queens and Brooklyn, tell you a little bit about our

         22  new project at York College.

         23                 MS. HILLS: Hi. Thanks for having us.

         24  I'm happy to announce that since the last time we

         25  testified before the City Council, the CUNY
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          2  Citizenship and Immigration Project has opened a new

          3  center at York College in Jamaica, Queens.

          4                 York College is the ideal site for an

          5  immigration center because of the vibrant immigrant

          6  community in which it's located.

          7                 Close to 40 percent of York College

          8  student body are non-US citizens. The college is

          9  located in Western Queens at the heart of the most

         10  diverse county in the United States.

         11                 Queens is home to more than 167

         12  different nationalities, with 47 percent of the

         13  population foreign-born. The largest groups of

         14  immigrants are from Latino and Asian countries. And

         15  of the top 20 neighborhoods with the largest

         16  immigration populations in New York City, five are

         17  located in Western Queens.

         18                 The CUNY Immigration Center at York

         19  College opened earlier this month. Currently it's a

         20  part-time operation and it's open Tuesdays and

         21  Thursdays from 9:00 to 5:00.

         22                 The center is staffed by one of our

         23  senior paralegals, Kymete Gashi. Ms. Gashi provides

         24  full citizenship application assistance,

         25  consultations and when necessary, referrals to other
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          2  CUNY centers.

          3                 The York College students faculty and

          4  administration have welcomed our center with open

          5  arms. They've been generous with the space and with

          6  providing us with the resources necessary to make a

          7  successful center.

          8                 It is a testament to the York College

          9  Administration that they recognize the need for

         10  immigration legal services for their campus

         11  community. We're thrilled to be part of this

         12  undertaking.

         13                 Looking towards the future, we're

         14  hoping to make the York Immigration Center a

         15  full-time operation, opening the center on evenings

         16  and on weekends to accommodate the many students at

         17  the college who work full-time and attend school

         18  around their work schedules.

         19                 In addition to this exciting new

         20  center at York College, the CUNY Citizenship and

         21  Immigration Project plans to open centers at

         22  LaGuardia Community College, and in neighborhoods

         23  with high need, including East Harlem and Washington

         24  Heights.

         25                 Times are getting more difficult and
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          2  complicated for immigrants. We pledge to continue

          3  efforts to provide high quality cost-effective

          4  services to New York's Immigrants.

          5                 Thanks.

          6                 MR. WERNICK: So, as you can see, CUNY

          7  Citizenship and Immigration Project is developing

          8  into a true Citywide effort, and we hope through

          9  that effort to assist immigrant professionals who,

         10  as we have discussed, face daunting obstacles in

         11  pursuing the chosen professions in the United

         12  States.

         13                 Our Center has already played a

         14  crucial role in assisting immigrant professionals by

         15  providing valuable immigration law assistance.

         16                 Working with target programs such as

         17  the LaGuardia Community College Welcome Back

         18  Program, and similar efforts that may be reflected

         19  at other CUNY colleges, we can focus and expand

         20  these efforts.

         21                 As I mentioned, the expansion of our

         22  project into a true Citywide legal assistance

         23  program will make our service available to a greater

         24  number of professional immigrants in New York City.

         25                 Further, we hope to provide
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          2  specialized literature, to advise immigrant

          3  professionals about the immigration options

          4  available to them.

          5                 Finally, we hope to provide both

          6  group and individual advice to students

          7  participating in the welcome back programs.

          8                 Thank you so much.

          9                 MS. KURIEN: Honorable Chair,

         10  Councilman Stewart, and other City Council members,

         11  I want to thank you for giving us the opportunity to

         12  speak to you today about the work of LaGuardia

         13  Community College, City university of New York and

         14  its Center for Immigrant Education and Training.

         15                 Before I start talking about what we

         16  do, I also want to acknowledge the leadership that

         17  the Committee has provided over the years when

         18  addressing the needs of the immigrant communities of

         19  New York, and particularly to acknowledge the

         20  briefing paper here, which provides a very

         21  comprehensive and succinct analysis of the needs of

         22  educated immigrants who live in this City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Can you just say

         24  who you are again.

         25                 We have to do this because everything
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          2  is being taped and we have to transcribe and all

          3  that, so we like to have you to identify yourself.

          4                 MS. KURIEN: I'm Suma Kurien, Director

          5  of the Center for Immigrant Education at LaGuardia

          6  Community College, the City University of New York.

          7                 And I want to thank Chairman Stewart

          8  and other City Council Members for giving us this

          9  opportunity to speak today about the work of

         10  LaGuardia Community College and the Center for

         11  Immigration and Training, and providing services to

         12  the immigrant communities of Queens and the rest of

         13  New York.

         14                 I also want to begin my remarks by

         15  speaking to the briefing paper that the Council, the

         16  Committee has in front of it. It's a very succinct

         17  and comprehensive statement of the issues that face

         18  educated immigrants who are under employed who come

         19  to the City with credentials and experience that

         20  would be a very valuable contribution to the City's

         21  economy and to their own communities, but who are

         22  unable to provide that service and work in the

         23  professions for which they have training and for

         24  which they bring to the City particular skills, and

         25  multi-cultural and bilingual experiences that would
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          2  contribute greatly to our ability to provide

          3  services.

          4                 LaGuardia Community College with a

          5  student population representing 159 countries is by

          6  its very nature a community of immigrants.

          7                 We're particularly proud of the

          8  specific programs and services that we have

          9  developed over the years that are designed to

         10  address the challenges of the immigrant communities

         11  of New York City.

         12                 Foremost among these programs has

         13  been the Center for Immigrant Education and

         14  Training, whose students and teachers Chairman

         15  Stewart was able to meet during your visit to the

         16  college.

         17                 As you saw the curriculum of the

         18  Center's innovative ESOL classes is rooted in our

         19  immigrant student's lives as parents, workers and

         20  citizens of the City. And our goal is to teach not

         21  just the language, often that is what the most

         22  important need, but to also help our students

         23  understand American Institutions, the workplace, the

         24  expectations, their rights, their roles, so that

         25  they can navigate American culture and advocate for
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          2  themselves and their families when they need to.

          3                 Over the last five years, we have

          4  served over 2,000 students providing free ESOL

          5  classes, career counseling, job training and

          6  referrals for job placement.

          7                 We're here today to talk about two

          8  ways in which CUNY wants to expand our services to

          9  the immigrant community.

         10                 You've already heard about our need

         11  to expand legal services to immigrants. I'm here to

         12  introduce a second important proposal for what we

         13  call "Welcome Back Centers."

         14                 The Welcome Back Center addresses a

         15  severe shortage of licensed medical personnel in New

         16  York City, by assisting foreign-born and

         17  foreign-trained medical personnel, who too often are

         18  driving cabs or busing tables to get their licenses

         19  and to start serving the immigrant communities of

         20  the City.

         21                 My colleague, Dean Sandra Watson,

         22  will discuss further the nature of Welcome Back

         23  Centers, but before I conclude, I want to tell you

         24  two stories.

         25                 Graciela Henriquez is a student in
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          2  our incumbent training program for hotel

          3  housekeepers. She works as a housekeeper at the

          4  Sheridan Hotel, a job that she's held for over eight

          5  years. It's backbreaking work, but with limited

          6  proficiency in English, she is fortunate to have

          7  such a job.

          8                 Yet, in a City, and this is the

          9  important point, Graciela Henriquez has a nursing

         10  degree from Chili. She's a registered nurse. She

         11  worked in Chili as a nurse. However, she is unable

         12  to work here as a registered nurse for a number of

         13  different reasons. And I think the briefing paper

         14  points out all of the various barriers. English

         15  being very crucial to one of them.

         16                 But in a City where nurses are in

         17  such short supply, this is a terrible waste of human

         18  talent.

         19                 Let me tell you about another student

         20  of ours, Lucy Pena, an occupational therapist from

         21  Ecuador and again, another occupational area where

         22  we are in great, we have a great shortage in the

         23  City. Lucy spoke no English when she first came to

         24  this country. Now, after completing a language

         25  program at LaGuardia, she is finishing up an
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          2  internship at Elmhurst Medical Center that we were

          3  able to connect her to.

          4                 And she's exploring how to get

          5  recertified in this country. Recently Lucy described

          6  to us how she felt before she was able to speak

          7  English. "I felt like an ant", she said, "una

          8  hermijita -- sin significanza --" without any

          9  significance, and now I'm a person, I'm a

         10  professional.

         11                 Both Graciela and Lucy are two

         12  examples of the kinds of individuals who benefit

         13  enormously from the services that a Welcome Back

         14  Center would provide.

         15                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Good morning.

         16  My name is Sandra Watson, and I'm the Associate Dean

         17  for the Division of Adult and Continuing Education

         18  at LaGuardia Community College, and I'd like to

         19  thank you, Councilman, you Honor, Chairperson

         20  Stewart, and Mr. Nelson, for allowing us to speak

         21  today about a project that we are very excited about

         22  and would like to see developed and replicated in

         23  New York City.

         24                 You've heard about the Welcome Back

         25  Center. This morning I'm just going to give you a
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          2  little bit of the need and overall, the overall goal

          3  of the project, what LaGuardia Community College has

          4  to offer, LaGuardia as part of the City University

          5  of New York, a little bit about our background, how

          6  we're building a Citywide Partnership to address the

          7  issues that had been examined earlier, what type of

          8  technical assistance we've received in trying to

          9  develop this project and some of the next steps that

         10  we would like to take in having Welcome Back Centers

         11  in New York.

         12                 You've already heard and through the

         13  briefing that was done this morning, shared with us

         14  this morning, that over a million immigrants arrived

         15  in New York City in the nineties and in 2000. There

         16  is a documented shortage in health care personnel in

         17  New York City, particularly those with language

         18  skills and cultural sensitivity needed to work with

         19  immigrants.

         20                 The Welcome Back Center, part of the

         21  need for the Welcome Back Center is to have people

         22  who do have cultural sensitivity, not just the

         23  skills, but for people who come from other cultures

         24  will feel comfortable in going to.

         25                 The need for foreign-trained health
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          2  care professionals, they require assessment.

          3  Assessment is going to be very important when I talk

          4  about some of the components of the program,

          5  counseling on health care, health career options,

          6  ESOL, training in new areas if they cannot go into

          7  their area of choice, or where they were trained in

          8  their country, validation of credentials or prep

          9  courses for licensing examinations.

         10                 Now, the overall goal of the project,

         11  we would like to establish a pilot Welcome Back

         12  Center at LaGuardia Community College in New York

         13  City to provide the following services. Some of

         14  those services were outlined in the briefing paper

         15  that we received. We would like to develop an intake

         16  center and an initial point of contact for

         17  foreign-trained health care professionals.

         18                 We'd like to assess the skill level,

         19  English language ability and options available for

         20  foreign-trained health care professionals.

         21                 We will provide case management and

         22  interventions, educational intervention, licensing

         23  prep, and validation of credentials. And very, very

         24  important, since we are part of the City University

         25  of New York, we will be able to refer people who
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          2  come into our doors to over 120 credit and 50

          3  non-credit health care programs available at 19 CUNY

          4  campuses. We'd like to be a gateway for education

          5  into the City University system.

          6                 Also, we know how important

          7  internships are, and Suma did not mention in her

          8  program, one of her programs that she said, she has

          9  been able to develop internship at local hospitals,

         10  in Elmhurst Hospital in Queens.  We're also looking

         11  at job advancement and placement.

         12                 Now, why LaGuardia Community College?

         13  LaGuardia Community College has something very

         14  significant to offer in terms of a welcome back

         15  project.

         16                 First of all, we are an award-winning

         17  community college, because we serve underserved

         18  populations, and we're very proud of the fact that

         19  we do work with non-traditional students.

         20                 We're the largest provider of ESL

         21  instruction in CUNY, second in New York City. I

         22  don't often mention this but NYU is the top one, but

         23  we are second in New York City in terms of ESL.

         24  We're the largest adult and continuing education

         25  program in CUNY with the capacity and commitment to
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          2  providing a variety of comprehensive services to

          3  immigrants.

          4                 We have a Workforce One Center

          5  located on campus with the ability to job place new

          6  and incumbent workers. We have a location of the

          7  Center for Immigrant Educational Training that Suma

          8  spoke about, and we have career ladders in Allied

          9  Health Programs.

         10                 We have the ability to replicate the

         11  models at other CUNY campuses, and that is one of

         12  our goals, and we have established relationships

         13  with California and Boston, where Welcome Back

         14  Centers have been originated.

         15                 The original Welcome Back Center

         16  originated in California. I was going to go into the

         17  background of LaGuardia Community College, but I

         18  think that you are pretty familiar with the

         19  institution, and Suma has given you some

         20  information. So, what I will mention is again the

         21  diversity of our student population. Sixty-six

         22  percent of our students are foreign born, and 49

         23  percent of these students have been in the United

         24  States for fewer than five years. More than half of

         25  our students speak other than English in their home.
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          2                 We have been building a Citywide

          3  partnership to develop the Welcome Back Center. We

          4  have been working on this for about a year now, and

          5  between May 2005 and April 2006, we've identified

          6  the major stakeholders in the City University of New

          7  York, the Health Care industry and within the

          8  community.

          9                 In our partnership right now we've

         10  identified four potential CUNY campuses, that if

         11  we're able to get funding this year and then we can

         12  replicate it next year, they would be our partners.

         13  We have two major health care corporations, one and

         14  two unions, three community and faith-based

         15  organizations.

         16                 The New York City Workforce

         17  Investment Board and the New York City Department of

         18  Small Business Services.

         19                 We've received technical assistance

         20  from the Director of the Welcome Back Center and

         21  founder of the Welcome Back Center in California.

         22  Dr. Jose Ramon Fernandez Pena and he has come to

         23  LaGuardia Community College with this technical

         24  assistance.

         25                 The next steps, we hope to secure
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          2  funding to establish a pilot program at LaGuardia

          3  Community College. As part of the CUNY Citizenship

          4  and Immigration Services Initiative.

          5                 We would like to implement the

          6  project at LaGuardia. We would like to evaluate its

          7  effectiveness, replicate the model at other CUNY

          8  campuses in the succeeding years, and plan for

          9  sustainability.

         10                 If you'd like further information

         11  about the Welcome Back Centers, you can contact me

         12  or SUMA and we would like to answer any questions

         13  that you might have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: First, I would

         15  like to welcome Council Member Mealy who has just

         16  joined us.

         17                 I have several questions, but first

         18  let me ask my colleagues, do you have any questions

         19  at this time?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No, Mr. Chair.

         21  I learned a lot already from this hearing, the able

         22  services that are supplied for sure, and obviously

         23  the main problem is funding with like a nine-month

         24  waiting list and about 33 adults don't get served

         25  for every one that does get served. This obviously
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          2  is the gist of the problem here. And even with the

          3  City flushed with money this year, I don't know how

          4  we're going to work that out, looking down the

          5  barrel or the deficit perhaps. Perhaps. We thought

          6  we were going to have a deficit, if you recall, Al,

          7  years ago, this year. So, one never knows. And I

          8  just want to compliment you on the valuable services

          9  you supply.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right. Now,

         11  we seem to have several compliments of programs that

         12  work into our CUNY system.

         13                 I would have liked to have several

         14  proposals, several things. I know that you spoke

         15  about one of them that you're dealing with from

         16  professionals.

         17                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: The Welcome

         18  Back Center.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Right, that is

         20  one.  I know we have a legal compliment for

         21  immigrants, that's another one.

         22                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Mm-hmm.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: And we have just

         24  the basic English-as-a-second-language compliment.

         25                 What I would like to know is if you
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          2  could give me a clear picture, Dr. Wernick, as to

          3  funding, how do we get our funding and where we're

          4  looking at, because this is the right time for us to

          5  talk about it, so that we can know where to put our

          6  interest.

          7                 MR. WERNICK: Thank you so much.

          8  Currently about half of our funding, a little over

          9  half of our funding comes from the City University

         10  of New York, with its generous contribution to

         11  serving immigrants. And as I always point out when I

         12  speak before you, there is no other university in

         13  the country that even comes close to providing the

         14  resources for immigrants both within the University

         15  itself and for the community at large.

         16                 A little less than half of our

         17  current funding comes through a grant from the

         18  Department of Youth and Community Development, and

         19  of course, we are hopeful that in the future, in

         20  order to, you know, expand our program as we would

         21  like to, we would hope that the City would be able

         22  to make additional contributions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: The folks from

         24  LaGuardia?

         25                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Okay, we do
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          2  not have funding for the Welcome Back Center but we

          3  do have program components that we have mounted

          4  using other funding.

          5                 For example, with WDI, Workforce

          6  Development Initiative money, we have developed a

          7  course that SUMA can talk about that would be part

          8  of a Welcome Back project.

          9                 Suma.

         10                 MS. KURIEN: Yes, the pilot program

         11  that we developed, course actually, is called an

         12  ESOL Bridge to Allied Health Training Programs. What

         13  we did was to identify people in our ESOL classes

         14  that we knew had health care credentials, and I

         15  talked about a couple of those folks earlier during

         16  my testimony, and to give them 16 weeks of

         17  vocabulary development, getting them ready for test

         18  taking skills, and along with that an internship at

         19  Elmhurst Hospital. Because a very important part of

         20  learning to function as a professional in this

         21  country is also understanding how the profession

         22  works in this country. The requirements are

         23  different. So, the work experience has been

         24  wonderful for them. They have come back now to work

         25  with our Career Counselor to begin to identify next
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          2  steps, and we are pleased to say that of the 15 that

          3  we have started out with, five have already entered

          4  other Allied Health Training Programs,

          5  phlebotomists, for one, somebody that's going into

          6  mental health. So, they're beginning to identify

          7  what the next steps are. And crucial to our plan is

          8  a career pathway, because we recognize that it takes

          9  a long while for somebody to get to the

         10  credentialing stage.

         11                 But there are a number of

         12  intermediate professions that pay well for which we

         13  have in the City an enormous need. Phlebotomy is one

         14  example, radiology is another, medical assistance

         15  are others, so these are areas in which people can

         16  get an intermediate certification, these are

         17  shorter-term certificates to mount, less expensive.

         18                 And to kind of go back to your

         19  question about funding, for next year we are hoping,

         20  and I guess there is a second degree of assurance,

         21  to continue this ESOL bridge course through funding

         22  that we hope to get through the Cog Perkins funding

         23  (phonetic) and the State. So, we're trying a variety

         24  of different options, including hopefully union

         25  funding, and, you know, that's where the partnership
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          2  comes in this program.

          3                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: We are

          4  utilizing, we're leveraging resources that we

          5  already have at the college. In terms of the

          6  planning, we are dealing with existing staff. So, I

          7  have been working on the planning, Suma has been

          8  working on the planning, so the City University has

          9  been funding that.

         10                 Additionally, when we have

         11  individuals who do have credentials that they can be

         12  put into jobs, we send them to the Workforce One

         13  Career Center. So, we're leveraging the resources in

         14  terms of assessment through that center.

         15                 But we really are looking for the

         16  seed money to pilot to establish the pilot, and we

         17  have a sustainability plan, but we would like to

         18  look for funding from government to help us move

         19  this forward.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Do you have a

         21  list of all the different professions that you would

         22  be looking to access?

         23                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Yes. We have a

         24  full proposal where we have all the professions, and

         25  they range from physician to occupational therapist,
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          2  physical therapist. So, we have about I would say

          3  100 categories that we are looking to work with.

          4                 Between 100 and 150 and we have those

          5  laid out in our full proposal, which I can share

          6  with you, if you haven't received it yet.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: What happens

          8  when an immigrant has no corroborating paper trail,

          9  basically?

         10                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: That is going

         11  to be a major assessment issue, in terms of them

         12  working with an educational counselor, to look at

         13  what kinds of examinations they can take in the

         14  United States.

         15                 If they have the knowledge base, they

         16  can take the examination to be able to get the

         17  credential. Often times they do not know what their

         18  options are. So, a very important component of the

         19  Welcome Back Center is to have educational case

         20  managers who deal with a very detailed assessment

         21  process with each client that comes in.

         22                 We're anticipating working with,

         23  having contact with about 1,000 individuals, once we

         24  do our public relations publicity, and hopefully we

         25  will work with between 500 and 600 individuals, and
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          2  our goal is to have 300 become credentialed, and

          3  between 150 and 200 job placed or advanced in

          4  placement. And that's pretty ambitious but we think

          5  we can do it with the staffing that we would like to

          6  have for this project.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Recently the

          8  Speaker has given some application forms for

          9  initials -- she has given us some forms to fill out

         10  for basically initiatives that we should be, you

         11  know, looking at.

         12                 Has LaGuardia submitted any of those

         13  forms yet? Or dealing with anyone with those forms?

         14                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Well, this is

         15  a joint project we have. In other words, we're

         16  looking to -- this is going to be a joint project

         17  for CUNY.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: So, the joint

         19  project would include the legal component, the

         20  professional component to have those who are foreign

         21  professionals but needs assistance, and also the

         22  civics.

         23                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Yes, the

         24  establishment of the Welcome Back Center.

         25                 MR. WERNICK: And we're anticipating
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          2  that the funding of $1.2 million would be adequate

          3  at least for the next phase of our development.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: You think that

          5  would be adequate for all different components that

          6  we're talking about, what we want to do?

          7                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Yes. We would

          8  like to replicate in the future, and that bill is

          9  much larger.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Okay.

         11                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Because we

         12  would like to have a center in each of the

         13  University so there would be one for each borough.

         14                 But right now, in terms of the pilot

         15  project, $600,000 would suffice, and then we'll come

         16  back next year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: That's for your

         18  portion you're talking about.

         19                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Right. Our

         20  portion is 600,000.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right.

         22                 So, Dr. Wernick, are you ready with

         23  your initiative, your forms and all of that?

         24                 MR. WERNICK: I believe we are, yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: All right.
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          2                 Council Member Nelson.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: No, thank you.

          4  I have no further questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Council Member

          6  Mealy?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY: No, thanks.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: I just want to

          9  make sure that they understand everything because

         10  I'm going to ask them to sign onto this initiative.

         11                 MR. WERNICK: We appreciate that.

         12                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: We appreciate

         13  your leadership in this effort. We really do

         14  appreciate it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON STEWART: Well, first of

         16  all, I want to thank you folks for coming in, taking

         17  the time to come into at least join us in this

         18  hearing.

         19                 We endeavor to really make a

         20  difference, and we know that at LaGuardia you're

         21  doing great work over there in terms of these folks

         22  in the immigration program that you have there, and

         23  Dr. Wernick, I know at the different CUNY centers

         24  you guys are doing great work, so we want to make

         25  sure that you stay in place and you grow for folks
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          2  who may need this help.

          3                 Once again I want to thank you.

          4  Seeing no other questions, any other comments? I

          5  must call this meeting to a close. No other

          6  testifiers, this meeting is adjourned.

          7                 ASSOCIATE DEAN WATSON: Thank you.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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